

1870-019

Chancery Causes

Caroline Carr vs Micajah Carr's admr & John Carr, by & c

Sale of Wright County

Lewis Johnson, admr of Caroline Johnson vs Micajah Carr's admr &

John Carr, by & c

John T. Carr, by & c vs Lewis Johnson

other surnames: Chapman,  
Stephenson

Whitfield p. q.  
Johnson adms. of  
Johnson

vs. 3 Chas. papers.

Carr's Adm. tabs.

1860.

May 7<sup>th</sup> Removed from  
County Court & docketed.

May 1860. Decree to  
collect & distribute.

Oct. 1860. Cond.

May 1861. Com.

May 1866. Cond.

Octo. 1866. Cond.

May 1867. Cond.

Octo. " Com.

May 1868. Cond.

Octo. " Cond.

May 1869. Com.

Octo. " Rule n. Com.

Dec. 31<sup>st</sup> 1869  
Report of H. Chapman  
filed.

May 1870 - Cond.

Carr Bill

Carr's admin<sup>or</sup>

Nov. 1<sup>st</sup>. 1838.

Bill of filed &  
inty. decreed.

Jan. 3<sup>rd</sup>. 1839 rept. of  
sale made & con<sup>o</sup>.

Jan 1839 ~~Sept~~ <sup>Sept</sup> <sup>Sept</sup> <sup>Sept</sup>  
& decree <sup>Johnston</sup> <sup>mis. n.</sup>

July set for hearing  
on pth. m. d.

July. rules 1860. Am. &  
supl. bill filed & sent. if.  
to adv. n. H. Clapman adv.  
of M. Carr, and Jno. Carrin<sup>th</sup>.

March rules - Decree  
mis. n. Adult def. &  
gd. addition ap. to inf.

apl. rules. Inf. and  
filed repl. and bill  
taken for consp. n. adult.

May rules set for hearing  
May comm 1860 - Transfere  
to circuit court.

To the much respected Justices of the County Court of York of England

The Petitioner Caroline Carr who humbly represents to your  
Worships, that her late husband, <sup>Allegat Carr,</sup> departed this life, leaving

leaving one child, named John about 4 years of age & your  
orator's surviving third - that his estate consisted <sup>altogether</sup> of a tract of  
land, and a negro girl, named Ellen worth about £100 -

That your orator has announced the provisions of the will of her  
said husband, and for ~~perhaps~~ entitled to rights at law & in  
equity the same - that she denies that her son, or third, or the  
negro girl Ellen be allotted to her - but as that obviously  
cannot be done, especially as compensation from other other  
sources cannot be made to her, for one third thereof - she  
prays, that the said Ellen be sold, and in lieu of her one  
third <sup>of the proceeds of the sale,</sup> thereof for life, she is willing to take a sum in full  
equivalent in value thereto - that Harvey Chapman qualified  
as adv. in law of the said husband's estate, but she avers  
that the said negro is not wanted to pay debts of said deceased.

In Tender consideration whereof and for as much as  
your orator is without adequate remedy save in this Hon.  
Court: she prays, that Harvey Chapman as adv. of <sup>Allegat</sup> Carr,  
& John Carr be made parties defendant to  
this bill and be compelled to answer the same  
That your orator will desire a sale of the said Ellen  
and division of the proceeds as here & above mentioned -  
and grant all other & necessary relief which may be just  
& to Equity may be deemed right.

Caroline Carr  
By D. H. Whittier



Car. prof

15

Levi. Estuon.

To the County Court of Cole County.

John T. Carr by his next friend Geo. W. Stephenson his next  
friend & his guardian represents to the Hon. Court, that since  
the sale of the negro girl Ellen, his mother Caroline T. Carr  
the widow of said deceased Carr and, intermarried on the  
23. Dec. 1858, with Lewis Johnson & she thereafter, on  
5. January 1859, departed this life. - your petitioner represents  
that his said mother had then no interest in the proceeds  
of sale of said negro, which was capable of paying to her  
said husband Lewis Johnson, but that the whole amt.  
thereof paid to your orator, and he prays that the same  
be so decreed. <sup>as well by operation of law, as by the will of said deceased Carr. In such case</sup> That the said Lewis Johnson be made  
a party to the bill and be compelled to answer the same.

John T. Carr by

Geo. W. Stephenson his

next friend -

Amended Bill  
Car's court  
~~The And Bill~~  
Car's down 025

Feb. 6. 1860 filed  
& sent. to ant. if D  
/

To the honorable justices of the County Court of Sale of my late husband,  
in chancery sitting, humbly complaining sheweth unto your worship -

Your orator Lewis Johnson who lives in his own right and as ~~admiror~~ <sup>by his own admission</sup> of his late wife Caroline, formerly Caroline V. Carr, that the said Caroline at the time she was the widow of Micajah Carr died, by her original will, petitioned the Court to sell the girl Ellen, then mentioned & for the reasons therein set forth, and that in line of her answer in the proceed of <sup>she comes later a senior in fee, of equivalent value,</sup> sale, that at the Nov. Term 1858, a decree was entered directed the sale of Ellen - that under said decree, she was sold, and the bond taken of the purchaser & which with the said Commissioner's report was duly returned & is filed among the papers in the cause, as will more fully appear by reference to the said proceeding. That soon after the sale, the said Caroline V. Carr, on the 23<sup>d</sup> of December 1858 intermarried, with your orator, and in a very short time thereafter, to wit, on the 5<sup>th</sup> January 1859 departed this life. That your orator qualified as administrator of his deceased wife, June 5. 1859, as will appear by <sup>a copy of</sup> the "order" appointing him, herewith filed as a part of this bill. That at the time of the filing of the original bill, & the rendering the decree, it seems that the Commissioner in the cause was not aware of the existence of the "Will & Testament" of the late Micajah ~~Johnson~~ Carr died - your orator contends that as his said wife Caroline in due <sup>time & form</sup> renounced the <sup>Micajah Carr,</sup> will of her said husband, as will appear by a copy of the same herewith filed, that any limitations therein touching the disposition of Ellen, could not affect her rights, and that it was competent for this hon. Court, to grant <sup>have</sup> a decree allowing a senior, to in fee, to the said Caroline V. Carr, in lieu of her dower interest in the proceed of sale, and he prays that under the circumstances the Court should carry out the prayer of the original bill to that effect.

That Hardy Chapman as admr. of Micajah Carr died, be required to settle <sup>his</sup> the transactions as such: Your orator is without adequate remedy save in this Hon. Court. To the End &c. he prays that Hardy Chapman admr. of Micajah Carr died, ~~be made~~ <sup>be made</sup> party defendant to this bill & be compelled to answer the same & having answered, ~~from hence~~ <sup>from hence</sup>: That your worship will decree <sup>from</sup> from the said proceed of sale, equivalent to the "dower" interest of his late wife Caroline, and grant all other & further relief which to Equity may seem meet &c.

P. Whitfield B2



Carv. Infants  
+ Sus

Carri admodos



Infl.  
Lato ~~it~~ ~~King~~ ~~Spain~~  
Causa ad. us ing

Nov. 1. 1838 filed

Corr.

<sup>at</sup> Carr's admission, } The answer of John Carr. By A. D. Young  
he has been appointed to defend his interest  
by Caroline Carr against the morals.

This respondent having & accepting in for answer  
to the writ of habeas corpus he is advised it is material  
for him to answer say, - that he neither admits  
or denies the truth of the facts or said rule, but as  
he is an agent of under you, he has come  
to be bound his interests, to the protection of this Court -  
& having answered says here -

A. D. Young gov.   
ad libitum



Johnston ad  
to Ans. of Adams

Carr's adv. oals.

The answer of Hardy Chapman administrator of Michael Carr ad. to a the several bills of Carr & Johnson administrator of Carr Caroline Johnson ad. filed in this Court against him & als.

This respondent saving & excepting &c. for answer to so much of said several bills as he is advised it is material for him to answer, answering say that it is true that he has qualified on the said Decedent estate, and would long since have settled with the parties, but for the difficulties growing out of this suit, that he then is & has been & is as administrator aforesaid, to his best satisfaction the sum of \$410.67 as of the 3<sup>d</sup> Oct. 1859, he will appear by a copy of his transaction duly made out before a Commissioner of this Court here with filed Mark 2. and brought to be taken as a part of his account. He further states that the facts of the bill touching the sale of Ellen - the marriage of Caroline Carr with Johnson & her subsequent death he believes are all true - This respondent is anxious to get the clear of the balance in his hands, and is indifferent to any decree which the Court may make provided his interests are duly protected & having answered brings hence &c.

Hardy Chapman

Whismans Can  
H, Infants  
any

---

Canals

North July 1860  
filed

The answer of John Carr infant son of Micajah Carr  
ad to an amended Plur<sup>th</sup> Bill filed against him & also in the  
County Court of Sale of Aught, By Lewis Johnson. By N. P. Young  
his Guardian ad litem v.

This respondent, By N. P. Young his Guardian ad litem, for answer to &  
much of said Bill as he is advised it is material for him to answer  
answering say, that he believes the facts as set forth in said Bill are  
substantially true; but he does not admit the claim of complainant  
to any portion of the ~~him~~ sale of Girl Ellen that the Court had not determined  
or acted on, the suggestion of Caroline V. Carr, as to the allowing her  
a sum in fee, in said proceeds of sale, in lieu of her dower interest -  
& that the same should not be allowed - that his interests in the  
premises are lawfully & lawfully to his honor to the Court. & having  
answered pray leave to be dismissed &c.

N. P. Young gon. 7  
ad litem

On the 11th day of May 1859 I delivered  
to Lewis Johnson a copy of the volume

Geo. B. Gay

Mrs. T. Carr  
3rd St. in  
N. Y. City  
Lewis Johnson

To June 1839.

Whitcomb



THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA,

To the Sheriff of Isle of Wight County—Greeting:

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED TO SUMMON *Lewis Johnson*

to appear at the Clerk's Office, of our *County* Court of Isle of Wight County, on  
the first Monday in *June* next, to answer *the bill in Chancery*  
*of John T. Carr an infant, being by George*  
*W. Stephenson his guardian & next friend.*  
of & plea of

*damages*

and have then and there this summons.

WITNESS, NATHANIEL P. YOUNG, Clerk of our said Court, at his Office, this *4<sup>th</sup>* day  
of *May* 185*9*, in the *85<sup>th</sup>* year of the Commonwealth.

*N. P. Young*

Executed July the 17th 1860 - By  
delivering a true copy of the  
within to Andy Chapman  
in person

Thos. Jefferson Esq  
No. 150 Bay

Johnson Adm.  
N. J. J. J.  
in charge of  
and. J. J.  
Lam's Adm. J. J.

To Mark July, 1860  
Coty. Cit.  
Whitfield J.

# THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA.

TO THE SHERIFF OF ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY,—GREETING:

WE COMMAND YOU TO SUMMON *Hardy Chapman* admor. of  
*Micajah Carr decd. with the will annexed*  
*and John Carr an infant*

to appear at the Clerk's Office of our *County* Court of Isle of Wight County, at rules to  
be holden for the said Court, on the first Monday in *March* next, to answer ~~the~~ *the*

~~the~~ *the* amended and supplemental bill  
of Lewis Johnson admor. of *Caroline J. Johnson*

of appeal of

damages

and have then there this writ. WITNESS, NATHL. P. YOUNG, Clerk of our said Court, at the Court House,  
this *9<sup>th</sup>* day of *February* in the year 186*0*, 'n the *84<sup>th</sup>*  
year of the Commonwealth.

*N. P. Young*

Jan'y. 3<sup>d</sup> 1839 adm.  
filed for excheq.

Rec'd.  
as. by Henry Reeves  
Lans. admr. 3<sup>d</sup>

June 26<sup>th</sup> 1860. Received of N. P. Young  
Clerk of the Circuit Court of Lake Washington County,  
the bond of Benj. D. Smith and W. E. Johnson  
for \$1000.00 which was dated on 9<sup>th</sup> Dec. 1858  
and mentioned in this report.

H. Chapman



At a County Court held for Isle of Wight County  
On the first day of November 1858.

Caroline Carr &als. vs.

Against

In Chancery

Hardy Chapman admr. of Micajah Carr.

Plff

Defrs.

On Motion N. P. Young is appointed guardian ad litem to defend the infant defendant, John Carr. This Cause came On to be heard on the Bill, answer of Hardy Chapman admr. of Micajah Carr decd. & answer of the infant John Carr by N. P. Young his guardian ad litem, & replications thereto, and was argued by Counsel. On Consideration, whereof, the Court doth adjudge, Order & decree, that Hardy Chapman who is hereby appointed a Commissioner for such purpose, will proceed to sell at public Auction to the highest bidder, On a Credit of Six Months, with interest from date of sale, Save so much for Cash as will be required to pay expenses & Costs of Suit & Sale, After having given twenty days Notice of the time terms & place of Sale, At the door of the Court house of Isle of Wight County, & other public places in the said County; the Negro girl, Ellen, in the proceeding mentioned, taking from the purchaser bond with sufficient security. with interest as aforesaid and report his proceedings with the bond aforesaid to Court. And that he report the fee simple value of the life interest of the said Caroline Carr in the proceed of Sale. But this Decree is to be suspended until the said Hardy Chapman Enter into bond in the Clerks office of this Court in the penalty of \$1400: payable to the Commonwealth of Virginia. Conditioned for the faithful performance of his duties in this Decree.

Hofy

Teste

J. C. Latimer D.C.

Attos: fees \$10.00 paid N. P. Young

Clks " 5.00  
Cats 5.00

for paid N. P. Young

In obedience to the above decree, after more than twenty days notice at the court-house door of Isle of Wight County, and other public places in the said County, did on the 9th day of December 1858 proceed to sell the negro girl Ellen at public auction to the highest bidder on the premises of Micajah Carr decd. on a credit of six months, and was purchased by, Berry D. Smith at eleven hundred and ten dollars, who entered into bond, carrying interest from date, with Willis E. Bohren his security, for ten hundred and sixty three dollars and eighty cents. The above amount being the net amount after deducting \$15.00 cost of decree \$15.00 commissions at 5 per cent on the first \$300.00 and \$6.20 on \$810.00 at 2 per cent commissions. All of which is most respectfully submitted for farther consideration of the Court.

H. Chapman Comr



Johnson v.  
3 Report of  
H. Chapman  
Case's adm. re

Dec. 31st. 1869 filed

To the Circuit Court of  
Isle of Wight County.

Pursuant to a decree of the Circuit Court of  
Isle of Wight County rendered at May term, 1860,  
in the suit therein depending between Lewis  
Johnson admt. of Caroline V. Johnson & selfs. and  
A. Chapman admt. &c. of Mucaph Carr decd. your  
commissioners appointed by said decree, received  
from the Clerk of the said Court the bond of  
Benj<sup>n</sup> D. Smith and W. E. Cahorn for \$1063.80 referred  
to in said decree. That the guardian of the  
That he distributed the amount in his hands of  
admt. as directed in said decree. That <sup>on this day</sup> the sum  
on said bond of \$1063.80 was paid to Lewis Johnson  
the selfs; to the 5<sup>th</sup> of Jan. 1859. That the said  
bond, without being collected, was paid over  
by your commissioners to Geo. W. Stephens and the  
guardian of Jas. D. Carr, he expressing a  
desire & preference to receive the same in  
stead of the money which could have been  
collected. The bond being considered perfectly  
good at the time - for which the said Stephens  
presented to your commission his receipt, which  
is herewith filed.

Given under my hand this 31<sup>st</sup> of  
Decr. 1869.

A. Chapman

Car. secum  
H. secum

Car. ad. 0.5

Nov 1854

to be continued

Geo. W. Carroll



Caroline Carr.  
H.

Hardy Chapman ad. of Elizabeth Carr & John Carr. by. St. P. & my  
bro. 9<sup>th</sup> ad. Litter

~~This case~~ On motion St. P. & my is appointed  
guardian ad litem to represent the infant defendant  
John Carr.

This cause came on to be heard on the 11<sup>th</sup>,  
answer of Hardy Chapman ad. of Elizabeth Carr &  
& answer of Infant John Carr by St. P. & my brother  
vs. replication thereto & was argued by counsel. On considera-  
tion whereof the Court with advice order and decree  
that Hardy Chapman who is appointed a Commissioner  
for that purpose, will proceed to sell at Public Auction  
to, on a credit of <sup>with interest from day of sale</sup> six months, <sup>1<sup>st</sup></sup> so much as will  
be required to pay expenses & costs of suit to sell what may  
be in cash, after having giving notice of time, place  
& place of sale, at ~~three~~ on the door of C. House of Sale  
of each County, & other public places in the County, the  
negro first, Ellen in the proceedings mentioned. Taking  
from the purchase, bond with sufficient security, with interest  
as aforesaid. ~~that the decree is to report his proceedings~~  
with bond aforesaid, to Court. X

But this decree is to be suspended until the said  
Hardy Chapman enter into bond, in the Clerk's Office  
of this Court, for in the penalty of \$1400.00. payable to the  
Comm. of the Court, conditioned for the faithful performance  
of this decree. And that he report the full simple value  
of the life interest of the said Caroline Carr, in the  
process of sale.



against the estate of Micajah Carr dec'd: and the costs of the  
recovering the same. And in respect of the amount hereby  
decreed in favor of the infant defendant, this decree is  
also to be suspended, until the legal guardian execute  
a bond <sup>with sufficient security,</sup> in the Clerk's Office, in the penalty <sup>thereof</sup> of double the amount,  
payable to the Commonwealth of the & conditioned well &  
faithfully to discharge his duties as <sup>such</sup> guardian -

Johnson adm. of Johnson

vs. Greene

Carr's ad. vs.

May 1861

To be entered

R. H. B.

21

Johnson, admr.

ff

Carroll, admr. or

} decree

This cause which <sup>was</sup> ~~has~~ regularly <sup>again</sup> removed from the County Court, to this Court, came on<sup>g</sup> to be heard, on the papers formerly read, upon the Supplemental Bill & Bill of Revivor, the answer of the defendant, Hardy Chapman answer of Margaret Carr and of the infant defendant John Carr, by N. P. Young his Guardian ad litem, replication thereto, Exhibits filed & was argued by counsel: On consideration whereof the Court doth adjudge, order and decree, that Hardy Chapman receive from the Clerk of this Court, on leaving his receipt therefor, the Bond returned with his Report for \$1063.80. against Biggs & Smith, and Mr. C. Cochran, and collect the same - and the Court doth further adjudge, order & decree, that the said Chapman pay the costs of this suit out of the balance stated in his answer & Exhibit. A; - then out of the residue of the said amount due by him as aforesaid, pay one third thereof to Lewis Johnson admr. of Caroline V, his late wife, and the remaining two thirds pay over to the lawful Guardian of the said John Carr - and the Court doth further adjudge, order & decree that the said Chapman out of the said Bond, pay to the plaintiff, one third of the interest on said Bond, from the, to the 5<sup>th</sup> January 1859 the time of the death of the said Caroline V. Johnson decd.; and the balance of the said proceeds <sup>also</sup> pay to the lawful Guardian of the said Infant defendant John Carr - & make report of his proceeding to Court. But this decree is to be suspended, until the several parties, execute refunding Bond, in <sup>a</sup> penalty amounting to double the several amounts so paid, before the Clerk of this Court, payable to the Comm. of the - conditioned to refund due proportion of all such debts as may hereafter appear

No. 20  
Johnson adw  
N

Learn adw

1869

Oct. Cr,

Order

To be entered

E. P. Little

Johns on &c.

<sup>r</sup>  
learn adv.

It is advised that Hardy  
Chapman be summoned to the next  
Term of this Court to show cause  
why an attachment should not  
issue against him for failing  
to make a Report in this cause  
as ordered by Decree of May Court  
1860



In Isle of Wight County Court - January 4<sup>th</sup> 1858. the last  
will and testament of Micajah Carr dead. was proved in  
Court by the oaths of Spencer Carr. and James McHollan  
the subscribing witness thereto - and ordered to be recorded.

Teste.

A. P. Young ex.

A Copy

Teste.

J. C. Latimer D.C.

Micajah Carrs.

Will

A Copy

Dec. 1<sup>st</sup> 1857.

I Micajah Carr of the County of Isle of Wight and State of Virginia - do Make - Ordain - Constitute and appoint this to be my last will and testament in manner & form following to wit -

1<sup>st</sup> I give and bequeath to my Mother Elizabeth Carr - Seven acreage Hogs, five barrels of Corn - and to have her Support Out of my estate - One year after my death; Also. she is to have privilege to get wood and lightwood - and rail timber to keep up her fire, so long as she lives.

2<sup>nd</sup> I leave to my beloved wife Caroline V. Carr - all of my estate - both real and personal - during her single ~~life~~ or Natural life, to be kept together as I leave it.

3<sup>rd</sup> It is my will and desire that at the death or marriage of my wife - that all the property be sold, except my land and Negro girl Ellen - and increase (if any).

4<sup>th</sup> I give and bequeath to my ~~Son~~ Wife Caroline V. Carr Two hundred Dollars out of the proceed of the property sold - to her and her heirs forever.

5<sup>th</sup> I give and bequeath to my son John T. Carr - all the real and residue of my Estate - including my land and Negro girl - to him and his heirs forever.

6<sup>th</sup> It is my will and desire that if my Son John T. Carr should die, and leave no legal heir, that the property that I have given him - to go to my wife Caroline V. Carr - to her and her heirs forever.

Witness

Spencer Carr

James M. Holland

Micajah Carr (Seal)

to the honourable court of J. Shopwight city,  
I Caroline V., Carr, <sup>age 21 1/2 years</sup> wife of the late Muckajah Carr  
do ask the said court to allow me out of the  
proceeds, ~~of~~ <sup>out of the sale of</sup> a negro girl Ellen which was shown  
on the 1<sup>st</sup> day of November 1858 ~~my father~~ to be  
sold for a division between my self and my  
son John Carr he being the only child of my late  
Husband, I ask the court to give me my portion  
in fee simple, all of which is most respectfully  
submitted,

I Caroline V. Carr

1<sup>st</sup>  
Carr  
to Carr. Bond

Carr's Bond

Nov. 12, 1838 filed



Know all Men by these Presents, That we Hardy Chapman  
and Francis C. Latimer

are held and firmly bound unto the Commonwealth of Virginia in the sum of One thousand  
four hundred dollars to the payment whereof, well and truly  
to be made, we bind ourselves, our Heirs, Executors and Administrators, jointly and severally, firmly  
by these presents. As witness our Hands and Seals, this 12<sup>th</sup> day of November  
in the year of our Lord, one thousand eight hundred and fifty eight

The Condition of the above Obligation is such, That whereas, by a Decree of  
the <sup>County</sup> Circuit Court of Isle of Wight County, pronounced on the 1<sup>st</sup> day of November  
in a cause depending in the said Court, in which Caroline V. Carr vs. C.  
are

Plaintiffs and

Hardy Chapman admr. of Micajah Carr

Defendants the

above bound Hardy Chapman was appointed a special  
Commissioner to see at public auction to the highest  
bidder, on a credit of six months, with interest  
from day of sale (same much for cash as will be  
required to pay expenses & costs of said sale), after having  
given 20 days notice of the time, terms & place of sale  
at the door of the Court house of Isle of Wight County & the  
place, the negro girl Ellen in the proceedings mentioned  
taking from her a bond & sufficient security with interest to pay the same with  
her proceeds to court.

Now, if the above bound Hardy Chapman shall faithfully discharge  
his duties as Commissioner under the said Decree, then the above Obligation to be void, otherwise  
to remain in full force and virtue.

Signed, Sealed and Delivered }  
in the presence of

A. P. Gomez

H. Chapman  
F. C. Latimer



Executed by delivering a true copy of  
the within to Hardy Chapman on the  
30th Decr 1869

A M. Eley. DS  
for H. Smith

Johnson advd.

3 Rules Comd.  
P. D.

Curran advd. tal.

To May cir. Ct. 1870.

Kelby Jy.

The Commonwealth of Virginia,

TO THE SHERIFF OF ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY, Greeting :

We command you to summon Hardy Chapman

<sup>before</sup>  
to appear ~~at the Clerk's Office~~ of the Circuit Court of Isle of Wight County,  
~~at Rules to be holden for the said Court,~~ on the first Monday in May  
~~next to answer~~ <sup>term next</sup> to show cause why an attachment  
should not issue against him for failing to make a  
report in the suit of Johnson adm. of Catherine  
Johnson vs. Hardy Chapman adm. of Miriam Carr with his  
will annexed <sup>rel.</sup> under decree of May Court 1860.  
a plea of non for \$        Damages, \$        And have  
then there this writ.

Witness, CHARLES H. HART, Clerk of our said Circuit Court, at the  
Courthouse, the 9<sup>th</sup> day of Dec. 1869, in the 94<sup>th</sup>  
year of the Commonwealth.

C. H. Hart